CARMEL MOUNTAIN RANCH/SABRE SPRINGS COMMUNITY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES July 8, 2015

A meeting of the CMRCC was held at the Carmel Mountain Ranch Branch Library on July 8, 2015. Eric Edelman, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. Official business was conducted as reported below.

Members Present	Members Absent
Dave Booher	
Cyndie Bradley	
Barbara Finn	
Eric Edelman	
Anne Chang	
Sam Rasoul	
Ester Berry	
Kurt Carlson	
Laurie Marcus	
Michael Nelson	
Rachele Melious	

Call to order and welcome by the Chairman – Eric Edelman

- I. Agenda approval motioned and seconded; 11 yes, 0 no, abstentions (agenda approved)
- II. Introduction of Board Members.
- III. Approval of minutes from May, 2015, (7yes, 0 no, 4 abstentions: Kurt, Laurie, Michael, and Rachele did not attend the May meeting [minutes approved]);
- IV. Chair Report None
- V. Public comment None
- VI. CMRCC business.
 - a. Police Officer Shannah Oliveras (Community Outreach Officer) and Captain Dawn Summers (Captain of the San Diego Police Department's Northeastern Division) –
 - CMR/SS communities are one of the best neighborhoods in San Diego as far as crime is concerned; Police work in this area is mostly property, burglary, and car. The department is working hard to take care of property crime – they recommended that residents not be a victim; keep garage door opener hidden, lock your car, and do not leave anything in it. In 2007, the department had 30 more officers than now.
 - 2. One fire trailer will be parked up here because of fire threat.
 - 3. The department had a SWAT operation that went well on the Marine base; they are preparing for the air show is coming up at Miramar this the second year for the air show back on track;
 - There will be a police department/CMRSS community event planned [Post-meeting note: On August 17, the flyer for the September 25 Golf Event was sent to the CMR/SSCC and posted on Next Door];
 - 5. The San Diego police department works closely with Poway and Escondido police departments; all support neighborhood watch programs and they suggested that residents see if there is a neighborhood watch program in their area; if there was one at some point they suggested that the residents could revive it even if it is dormant;
 - 6. Nextdoor [Attachment 1 Nextdoor] police helicopter notifications will be posted here – Program has been successful locating juveniles and elderly wanderers; the Nextdoor system is filterable if you do not want to receive notifications about everything; they recommended that if you see something between neighbors to send an email to the police; the house of the #3 person in the DA's office was broken into; computers/jewelry taken; they recommended that the residents watch what doesn't seem to fit in the neighborhood.

- 7. Recent crime in the area: Stolen vehicles May 3 in Sabre Springs, 3 in Carmel Mountain Ranch; June 1 in Sabre Springs, 5 in Carmel Mountain Ranch [majority were in large parking lots; recovered vehicles 1 in Sabre Springs, 1 in Carmel Mountain Ranch [Post-meeting update from Officer Oliveras One was found on Carmel Mountain Road near the 15 and the other was on Sabre Springs Parkway not too close to the freeway ramps]. Break-ins May 5 in Sabre Springs, 2 in Carmel Mountain Ranch, June 0 in Sabre Springs, 3 in Carmel Mountain Ranch (all were crimes of opportunity, e.g., suspect entered from the open spaces behind the house; through side garage door; screen removed from the window)
- 8. The department recommends that you secure doors and make sure they are closed; consider putting a lock on the electrical panel to prevent a burglar from cutting off all electricity to the house; always acknowledge a knock at the door; use Operation identification (Attachment 2 operation identification) record serial numbers; take pictures; video the inside of your house; take advantage of the vacation house check (Attachment 3 vacation house check)
- Miscellaneous National night out (Attachment 4 National Night Out); Speed issues; Councilman Kersey just donated 2 speed trailers; email any requests for speed trailer; Police are pro-body cameras and August is probable for the Northeastern district to begin use.
- b. CMR Fire Station not here.
- c. Congressman Scott Peters (Hugo Carmona) Not here
- d. Senator Joel Anderson (Ed Smith) Not here
- e. Assemblyman Brian Maienschein (Michael Lieberman) AB 217 will clarify the code to mandate the court to inform the minor that he or she has the right to address the court and participate in the hearing; legislative recess, but the office is open.
- f. Supervisor Dave Roberts (Harold Meza Mira Mesa resident) –204 birds so far this year with West Nile Virus; 41 in 2014; residents need to get rid of anything that will support mosquitos; if you see dead birds/green swimming environ 858-694-2888 vector control program; <u>vector@sdcounty.ca.gov</u>; for more information see <u>http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/deh/pests/vector_disease.html</u>.
- g. Councilman Mark Kersey (Alex Vivona; avivona@sand diego.gov) –Graduated UCSD with a degree in political science; has been interning with Councilman Kersey for the past year and is now full time; City Council new budget started July 1; the council is in recess for the majority of August, but all staff members are there.
- h. San Diego Planning Dept. Tony Kempton: park and recreation facility: owned by the transportation storm water department; needs to be evaluated as a dog park; needs to be repurposed; A private party through development services to apply for a permit.
- i. Mayor Kevin Faulconer (John Ly): Not here
- VII. Chair's Report: None
- VIII. Old Business: none
 - a. New Business: None
 - b. Action Items: Vote on the new by-laws; revised by-laws sent to council members prior to the meeting; after a brief discussion of the changes, a motion to approve the revisions was made and seconded. 11 yes, 0 no, 0 abstentions (by-laws approved)
- IX. Adjournment at 7:25 PM.

Next meeting September 9, 2015, 6:30PM

(Meeting Minutes to be completed and then emailed to <u>SDplanninggroups@sandiego.gov</u>, <u>TKempton@sandiego.gov</u>, group/office representatives and <u>gfairley@waltersmanagement.com</u>, along with the other Council members.)

Nextdoor San Diego

When neighbors start talking, good things happen. Nextdoor makes it easy to communicate with your neighbors about the issues that matter most in your community.





Nextdoor protects you, your information, and your neighborhood. More than 20,000 neighborhoods across the country trust Nextdoor to keep them safe.



Neighbors only

The New York Simes ELSA TODAY

Each Nextdoor website is password-protected and private to you and your neighbors. Members must verify that they live in the neighborhood before they can join a Nextdoor website.



All your information is secure

Nextdoor takes your privacy seriously. None of the information you share on Nextdoor is available on search engines. And your personal information is never shared with advertisers or third parties.



Make your neighborhood safer

When neighbors know each other, they look out for one another. Nextdoor makes it easy to come together to create watch groups, report suspicious activity, and prevent crime before it happens.



CNN

WALL STREET JOURNAL

parenting

WIRED

Los Angeles Times

INFORMATION SHEET

- Q. What is "Operation Identification"?
- A. A program to discourage theft and burglary by identification of valuables and the warning to potential thieves this action has been taken.
- 2. How is "Operation Identification" accomplished?
- A. By etching one's operators license number on portable items.
- 2. Why not use Social Security number rather than operators license number?
- 1 Federal restrictions prevent the use of Social Security numbers to trace an individual, whereas the operators license number can be traced easily by any law enforcement agency and the current address obtained.
-) Why does this discourage thelt?
- A window sticker serves notice that the items have been marked. Thus, if stolen, the item could be used as directed evidence in court. The property would also be more difficult to trade or sell.
- How long does it take to get the information back on the operators license number?
- The California Law Enforcement Telecommunications System (CLETS) now has the identity and address of every licensed driver computerized, therefore this information can be retrieved in minutes with only the operators license number.
- What should you mark?

We suggest you mark all items of value; i.e., furniture, office equipment, appliances, binoculars, cameras, fishing equipment, golf clubs, jewelry, musical instruments, t.v.'s, power tools, lawn equipment, radios, vehicle accessories (tape decks, hubcaps, etc.), tools, and any other items you value.

Where do I get the tools and window slickers?

The etching tools and window stickers may be obtained from any of the storefronts.

AN EVEN BREAK

- 1 Keep your "Personal Property Inventory List" in a sale place, possibly with your insurance papers. The "Personal Property Inventory List" is a type of insurance, helping us to recover your stolen property in the event of a theft or burglary.
- 2. The more complete your "Personal Property Inventory List" the better. In case of a loss by causes other than theft it may help you establish your loss with your insurance company. As an example, if you have a fire in your residence and lose a couch, an end table and portion of your carpet in your front room, the accurate listing of when and how much you paid for the items will assist you in establishing your loss.
- On the "Personal Property Inventory List" place 3. a check mark behind the room indicated. Make the "Description of Item" as complete as possible. Include manufacturer, model number, size, color, and material of the item. This might include damage marks, repairs, etc. In the "Manulacturer's Serial Number" section list any serials numbers on the item, if any. DO NOT confuse this with the model number. In the section marked "Home Owner's CDL # put the California drivers license number of the head of the household. In the case of an item that has been given to a junior member of the family as a gift, and this person has a California drivers license, it should be listed for the item.
- 4. In inventorying a room, use a systematic approach. One suggested method is to first list the floor covering, if any. The inventory items you come in contact with in a clockwise direction. This should be done throughout the room and include items on the walls. After a complete circuit of the room is made, inventory items in the center of the room.
- 5. Extra sheets can be obtained from the location where you checked the etching pen out. Remember to review the inventory list annually.

REMEMBER: Fill out the "Pernonal Property Inventory List" completely and file with your important papers. Whenever possible, engrave the operators license number on metal.

CRIME IS EVERYBODY'S BUSINESS AND PREVENTION IS EVERYBODY'S RESPONSIBILITY

Facts About

Operation Identification

"Personal Property" Inventory List



"PERSONAL PROPERTY"
INVENTORY LIST

SAN DIEGO POLICE DEPARTMENT

NON-EMERGENCIES: 236-6566

EMERGENCIES ONLY: 9-1-1

LIVING ROOM	FAMILY ROOM	BEDROOM		OTHER
DINING ROOM	KITCHEN	GARAGE	\square	(CHECK ONE)

INVENTORY DATE

DESCRIPT	ION OF ITEM	COMPLETE	AS MUCH A	S POSSIBLE	MANUFACTURER'S	HOME OWNER'S	VALUE
Manufacturer	Model Number	Size	Color	Material	SERIAL NUMBER	CDL# OR MARK	\$ \$ \$
÷	-						
			1111		-		
					-		
	(-						
	-						
					-		
					-		
					_		
(•))	-						
						Table 1 - Constant and the second sec	
	-						
	4				1		



VACATION HOUSE CHECK

House should not be for rent or for sale



Occurrentle News (set 1 - 1)	PLEASE PRINT - BLACK INK ONLY		POTECTION
Occupant's Name (print only)		Phone	Service Are
Address	Zip Code Com	munity Gate Code	
Depart Date Depart Tir	ne Return Date	Return Time	Thomas Gui
	ht the alarm go off if doors are firmly checked	? Y N	
Name of Alarm Company	P	hone	
Door screens unlocked? Y N	(Note: Should be left unlocked so doors car	n be checked)	
Any windows intentionally left (DPEN? Y N Where?		
Gardner? Y N Days M	T W T F S Name?		
ate(s) locked? Y N	OK to go in back yard? Y N	Dog in yard? Y	N
lumber of vehicles in driveway pescription of vehicle(s):	0 1 2 3 4		
adio left on inside house? Y	N Night light on? Y N Where:		
st Emergency Contact Name	Home	Phone	
ddress	Work	Phone	
elationship	Has h	ouse key? Y N	
nd Emergency Contact Name	Home	Phone	
ddress	Work	Phone	
lationship		ouse key? Y	
ame(s) (if any) other than Emerg	ency contact(s) authorized to be in the house	2	•
	h	e CANNOT move or rer ut flyers, newspapers &	& doorhangers
mments or Special instructions:		will be placed in b	the second s
			Control No.
te request taken:	Taken by: Office	or Service No.	Approved:
			whicher.

13396 Salmon River Rd., San Diego, CA 92129



JOIN THE SAN DIEGO POLICE DEPARTMENT IN CELEBRATING

NATIONAL NIGHT OUT 2015

Tuesday, August 4th, 2015

5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Northeastern Division

13396 Salmon River Road San Diego, CA 92129

National Night Out is an event designed to heighten awareness of crime and drug prevention, generate support for anti crime programs and strengthen neighborhood spirit and police/community partnerships. We will have various booths set up for kid's activities, child fingerprinting with photos, entertainment, snacks and provide safety information to the citizens in our community. SDPD SWAT, SDPD K9 and variety of other SDPD representatives will be here to celebrate the 32nd anniversary of National Night Out.

This is SDPD Northeastern Division's 3rd annual National Night Out, we are very thankful to Target Stores for partnering with us again this year to provide a free event. We will have many more wonderful contributors setting up booths.

LET THE CRIMINALS KNOW, THE NEIGHBORHOODS ARE FIGHTING BACK!

Residence and neighborhoods throughout San Diego and across the nation are asked to lock their doors, turn on outside lights and spend the evening with neighbors and first responders.

Please contact Community Relations Officer Shannah Oliveras (activeras@ad.sandlego.gov) if you have any questions.

Carmel Mountain Ranch/Sabre Springs Community Committee (CMRSSCC)

Amended August 27, 2013

Revisions prepared June 29, 2015

ARTICLE I Name

- Section 1. The official name of this organization is the Carmel Mountain Ranch/Sabre Springs Community Committee (CMRSSCC).
- Section 2. All activities of this organization shall be conducted in its official name.
- Section 3. The community planning area boundaries for the CMRSSCC are the boundaries of the Carmel Mountain Ranch/ Sabre Springs communities, as shown on Exhibit "A".
- Section 4. Meetings of the CMRSSCC shall be held within these boundaries, except that when the CMRSSCC does not have a meeting facility within its boundary that is accessible to all members of the public, they may meet at the closest meeting facility.
- Section 5. The official positions and opinions of the CMRSSCC shall not be established or determined by any organization other than the planning group, nor by any individual member of the planning group other than one authorized to do so by the planning group.

ARTICLE II Purpose of Community Planning Group and General Provisions

- Section 1. The CMRSSCC has been formed and recognized by the City Council to make recommendations to the City Council, Planning Commission, City staff, and other governmental agencies on land use matters, specifically concerning the preparation of, adoption of, implementation of, or amendment to, the General Plan or a land use plan, when a plan relates to the Carmel Mountain Ranch/Sabre Springs communities' boundaries. The planning group also advises on other land use matters as requested by the City or other governmental agency as detailed in Council Policy 600-24, Article II: Purpose of Community Planning Groups and General Provisions.
- Section 2. In reviewing individual development projects, the CMRSSCC should focus such review on conformance with the Land Development Code and the adopted community plan and/or the General Plan. Preliminary comments on projects may be submitted to the City during the project review process. Whenever possible, the formal planning group recommendation should be submitted no later than the end of the public review period offered by the environmental review process. Upon receipt of plans for projects with substantive revisions, the planning group may choose to rehear the project and may choose to provide a subsequent formal recommendation to the City.

- Section 3. All activities of the CMRSSCC shall be nonpartisan and nonsectarian and shall not discriminate against any person or persons by reason of race, color, sex, age, creed or national origin, or sexual orientation, or physical or mental disability. In addition, meeting facilities must be accessible to disabled persons.
- Section 4. The CMRSSCC shall not take part in, officially or unofficially, or lend its influence in the election of any candidate for political office. Elected members shall not identify affiliation with a planning group when endorsing candidates for public office. The planning group may take a position on a ballot measure.
- Section 5. The CMRSSCC's failure to respond to the City's request for input on the preparation of, adoption of, implementation of, or amendment to, the General Plan or a community, precise, or specific plan, or failure to review and reply to the City in a timely manner on development projects shall result in the forfeiture of rights to represent the Carmel Mountain Ranch/Sabre Springs community for these purposes. Such a determination resulting in the forfeiture of rights to represent the community for these purposes shall be made only by the City Council upon the recommendation of the Mayor's Office.
- Section 6. The CMRSSCC operates under the authority of the Ralph M. Brown Act, which requires that meetings of the planning group are open and accessible to the public. In addition, Council Policy 600-24 "Standard Operating Procedures and Responsibilities of Recognized Community Planning Groups" and these bylaws govern the operations of the planning group. Several provisions of these bylaws constitute Brown Act requirements as outlined in the Policy. Amendments to Council Policy 600-24 will apply to the CMRSSCC, as well as to all other community planning groups, even if individual groups' bylaws are not required to be amended with parallel language.

In addition, the Administrative Guidelines provide explanations of the Policy's minimum standard operating procedures and responsibilities of this planning group. The latest version of Robert's Rules of Order is used when the Policy, the Administrative Guidelines, and these bylaws do not address an area of concern or interest.

Section 7. The CMRSSCC may propose amendments to these bylaws by a two-thirds vote of the voting members of the planning group. Proposed amendments shall be submitted to the offices of the Mayor and City Attorney for review and approval. Any proposed amendments that are inconsistent with Council Policy 600-24 shall not be approved by the Mayor and City Attorney and shall be forwarded to the City Council President who shall docket the matter for Council consideration. Bylaws amendments are not valid until approved by the City.

ARTICLE III Community Planning Group Organizations

Section 1. The CMRSSCC shall consist of 15 elected members to represent the community. These members of the planning group shall constitute the officially recognized community planning group for the purpose of these bylaws and Council Policy 600-24.

Section 2. Council Policy 600-24 requires that elected members of the CMRSSCC shall, to the extent possible, be representative of the various geographic sections of the community and diversified community interests. The CMRSSCC elected seats are filled by distribution of seats among the following interests that represent the community: 12 seats for residents, and 3 seats for business representatives.

Planning group members shall be elected by and from eligible members of the community. To be an eligible community member an individual must be at least 18 years of age, and shall be affiliated with the community as:

(1) A property owner, who is an individual identified as the sole or partial owner of record, or their designee, of a real property (either developed or undeveloped), within the community planning area, or

(2) A resident, who is an individual whose primary address of residence is an address in the community planning area, or

(3) A local business person, who is a local business or not-for-profit owner, operator, or designee at a non-residential real property address in the community planning area; only one representative of a particular establishment may hold a seat on the CMRSSCC at one time.

An individual may become an eligible member of the community by attending two meetings of the CMRSSCC and documented by meeting attendance prior to the March general election.

Once eligibility to vote is established, an individual remains an eligible member of the community until a determination is made that the individual does not meet the planning group's criteria and formal action is taken by the planning group. However, the CMRSSCC shall require proof of eligibility during elections.

Section 3. Members of the CMRSSCC shall be elected to serve for fixed terms of 2 years with expiration dates during alternate years to provide continuity. No person may serve on the planning group for more than eight consecutive years. The eight year limit refers to total maximum consecutive years of service time, not to individual seats held.

After a one-year break in service as a planning group member, an individual who had served for eight consecutive years shall again be eligible for election to the planning group.

The planning group will actively seek new members to the extent feasible. If not enough new members are found to fill all vacant seats the planning group may retain some members who have already served for eight consecutive years to continue on the planning group without a break in service. Refer to Council Policy 600-24 Article III, Section 4 for further clarification. Section 4. A member of the CMRSSCC must retain eligibility during the entire term of service.

- Section 5. A member of the CMRSSCC found to be out of compliance with the provisions of Council Policy 600-24 or the planning groups adopted bylaws risks loss of defense and indemnification [legal protection and representation] pursuant to Ordinance No. 0-19883 NS, and any future amendments thereto.
- Section 6. Some provisions of these bylaws constitute requirements under the Brown Act, as outlined in Council Policy 600-24. A member of the CMRSSCC who participates in a meeting of the planning group where actions are alleged to have been in violation of the Brown Act may be subject to civil or criminal consequences.

ARTICLE IV Vacancies

Section 1. The CMRSSCC shall find that a vacancy exists upon receipt of a resignation in writing from one of its members or upon receipt of a written report from the planning group's secretary reporting the third consecutive absence or fourth absence in the 12-month period of April through March each year, of a member(s) from the planning group's regular meetings.

A vacancy may also exist following a vote of a community planning group, as described in Article III, Section 5 of Council Policy 600-24 related to ineligibility, or following conclusion of a member-removal process conducted under Article IX of the Policy, or due to adopted bylaws violations.

Section 2. Vacancies that may occur on the CMRSSCC should be filled not later than 120 days following the date of the determination of the vacancy. The term of office of any member filling a vacancy shall be for the balance of the vacated term.

The CMRSSCC shall fill vacancies within four months after the time the vacancies are declared. Vacancies shall be filled by selection by planning group members within four months after the time the vacancies are declared.

Two or more concurrent CMRSSCC vacancies shall be filled by a vote of all eligible members of the community by secret written ballot.

Section 3. When the CMRSSCC is unable to fill a vacancy within 120 days, as specified above, and the planning group has more than twelve members, a search for a new member should continue, however either the seat may remain vacant until the next planning group election, or these bylaws may be amended to permit decreased membership to a minimum of 12 members. If a vacancy remains for more than 60 days from the time a vacancy is declared, and there are less than 12 elected planning group members in good standing, the planning group shall report in writing the efforts made to fill the vacancy to the City. If, after 60 additional days, the planning group membership has not

reached 12 members, the planning group will be deemed inactive until it has attained at least 12 members in good standing.

ARTICLE V Elections

Section 1. General elections of CMRSSCC members shall be held during the month of March in accordance with the adopted elections procedures as found in Article VIII.

The CMRSSCC's general elections shall be held annually.

The deadline to qualify for candidacy in the March general election shall be prior to the February noticed regular or special meeting of the full planning group membership preceding the election. The planning group's Election subcommittee shall be established no later than January and shall begin soliciting eligible community members to become candidates. In February, the Election subcommittee shall present to the planning group a complete list of interested candidates collected up to that point in time. Candidates may be added at the February meeting. A candidate forum may be advertised and held at the February meeting.

In order to be a candidate in the March election, an eligible member of the community [see Article III, Section 2] must have documented attendance at two meetings of the CMRSSCC's last 12 meetings prior to the February regular meeting preceding the election.

Section 2. The CMRSSCC shall make a good faith effort to utilize means appropriate to publicize the planning group's eligibility requirements for candidacy and the upcoming elections.

In the election process, the planning group shall seek enough new candidates to exceed the number of seats open for election in order to allow those who have served for eight consecutive years to leave the group for at least one year.

The CMRSSCC holds its election after the adjournment of the March regular meeting on the same day or at the meeting just prior to the March meeting.

The CMRSSCC will require proof of identity of those eligible community members who are seeking to vote in the election. The planning group shall ensure that voting is only by eligible members of the community.

The ballot presented to eligible community members to vote will clearly identify which seats individual candidates are running for, how many candidates can be selected, whether there are limitations on which candidates various categories of eligible community members can vote for and which candidates, if any, must receive a 2/3 majority of the vote due to service beyond eight or nine consecutive years of service.

The CMRSSCC planning group's policy related to write-in candidates is that write-in candidates are not allowed.

-5-

- Section 3. Voting to elect new community planning group members shall be by secret written ballot. Proxy voting for elections is not allowed under any circumstances. Development and promotion of "slates" of candidates is contrary to the intent of Council Policy 600-24 and is not allowed.
- Section 4. The CMRSSCC's election becomes final after announcing the election results at the conclusion of the noticed, regular March monthly planning group meeting. The Chair is responsible for preparing, certifying and forwarding the election report to the City. New members shall be seated in April at the start of the regular meeting in order to allow their full participation as elected members at the April planning group meeting.

Any challenge to the election results must be filed with the chair of the Elections subcommittee in writing within 24 hours of the counting of the ballots in order to allow enough time to resolve the issue.

Section 5. Article VIII, Section 1(e) contains all voting procedures, including: voting time/s; voting locations/s; voting eligibility; candidate eligibility; elections committee establishment and responsibilities; promotion of elections; counting votes [plurality, etc.]; ballots; reporting election results to the Chair, and, election challenge criteria and procedures.

ARTICLE VI Community Planning Group and Planning Group Member Duties

Section 1. It is the duty of the CMRSSCC to cooperatively work with the City throughout the planning process, including but not limited to the formation of long-range community goals, objectives and proposals or the revision thereto for inclusion in a General or Community Plan.

It is the duty of all planning group members to conduct official business of the planning group in a public setting. It is recognized that the officers of the planning group may oversee administrative business of the planning group, such as the assembling of the draft agenda, in preparation for public discussions. However, all substantive discussions about agenda items or possible group positions on agenda items shall occur at the noticed planning group meetings.

It is the duty of a planning group as a whole, and of each individual member, to refrain from conduct that is detrimental to the planning group or its purposes under Council Policy 600-24. No member shall be permitted to disturb the public meeting so as to disrupt the public process as set forth on the planning group's agenda.

Section 2. (a) Meeting Procedures

It shall be the duty of each member of the CMRSSCC to attend all planning group meetings.

(i) REGULAR AGENDA POSTING - At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, the agenda containing a brief general description of each agenda item shall be posted. The brief

general description of each agenda item need not exceed 20 words per item unless the item is complex. The agenda shall also provide notice of the date, time and location of the meeting. The agenda shall be posted in a place freely accessible to the general public and shall include information on how a request for accessible accommodation may be made.

The listing of the agenda item shall include the intended action of the planning group regarding that item [e.g., information item, action item].

The agenda shall be offered to the City for posting on the City's website and will be posted in the Carmel Mountain Ranch branch of the San Diego Library 72 hours in advance of the meeting.

(ii) PUBLIC COMMENT- Any interested member of the public may comment on agenda items during regular or special planning group meetings. In addition, each agenda for a regular planning group meeting shall allow for a public comment period at the beginning of the meeting for items not on the agenda but are within the scope of authority of the planning group. Planning group members may make brief announcements or reports to the planning group on their own activities under the public comment section of the agenda. The planning group may adopt time limits for public comment to ensure operational efficiencies.

(iii) ADJOURNMENTS AND CONTINUANCES - If the CMRSSCC does not convene a regularly scheduled meeting, there shall be a copy of the "Notice of Adjournment" of the meeting posted on or near the door of the place where the adjourned meeting was to be held within 24 hours after the time the meeting was to be held.

If a meeting is adjourned because less than a quorum was present, a new regular meeting agenda must be prepared. If a meeting is adjourned because no members of the planning group were present, the subsequent meeting, if not a regular meeting, must be noticed as if a special meeting.

(iv) CONTINUED ITEMS - If an item is continued from a prior regular meeting to a subsequent meeting more than 5 days from the original meeting, a new agenda must be prepared as if a regular meeting; otherwise the original meeting agenda is adequate.

(v) CONSENT AGENDA - For items to be considered for a "Consent Agenda" all of the following are required:

- 1. A subcommittee of the planning group has discussed the item at a noticed subcommittee meeting,
- 2. All interested members of the public were given an opportunity to address the subcommittee, and

The item has not substantially changed since the Subcommittee's consideration.

The comments of the subcommittee and those made by interested members of the public should be reflected in the minutes of the subcommittee. Any interested member of the public may comment on a consent agenda item. Any interested member of the public may take a consent agenda item off the consent agenda by request.

(vi) QUORUM AND PUBLIC ATTENDANCE - A quorum, defined as a majority of nonvacant seats of a planning group, must be present in order to conduct business, to vote on projects, and to take actions at regular or special planning group meetings.

No member of the public shall be required, as a condition of attendance at any meeting of the planning group, to register or provide any other information. Any attendance list or request for information shall clearly state that completion of such information is voluntary. No member of the public may be charged a fee for admittance.

(vii) DEVELOPMENT PROJECT REVIEW - The CMRSSCC may not, as a condition of placing an item on the agenda, require applicants to submit additional information and materials beyond which the applicant has been required to submit as part of the City's project review application process.

When reviewing development projects, the planning group shall allow participation of affected property owners, residents and business establishments within proximity to the proposed development.

The planning group shall directly inform the project applicant or representative in advance each time that such review will take place and provide the applicant with an opportunity to present the project.

(viii) ACTION ON AGENDA ITEMS - An item not noticed on the agenda may be added if either two-thirds of the voting members of the CMRSSCC, or every member if less than two-thirds of the voting members of the CMRSSCC are present, determine by a vote that there is a need to take an immediate action, but only if the need for action came to the attention of the planning group subsequent to the agenda being posted.

A two-thirds vote of the voting members of the CMRSSCC is required to remove an elected community planning group member in accordance with Article IX.

Removing a member due to ineligibility in accordance with Article III, Section 2 requires a majority vote of the voting members of the CMRSSCC for the purpose of ratifying the findings presented by the Secretary to the group.

Amendments to adopted bylaws require a two-thirds vote of the voting members of the CMRSSCC.

A vote to approve a community plan update or a community plan amendment requires a majority vote of the voting members of the CMRSSCC.

All other CMRSSCC actions, including subcommittee votes, only require a simple majority of the voting members of the group in attendance when a quorum is present.

The CMRSSCC planning group's chair fully participates in planning group discussions and votes on all action items.

The planning group shall not engage in, or allow, secret ballot or proxy voting on any agenda item. Other methods of absentee voting on agenda items, such as by telephone or by e-mail are also prohibited.

Votes taken on agenda items shall reflect the positions taken by the elected or appointed positions on the planning group identified in Article III, Section 1 of Council Policy 600-24.

(ix) COLLECTIVE CONCURRENCE - Any attempt to develop a collective concurrence of the members of the CMRSSCC as to action to be taken on an item by members of the planning group, either by direct or indirect communication, by personal intermediaries, by serial meetings, or by technological devices, is prohibited, other than at a properly noticed public meeting.

(x) SPECIAL MEETINGS - The chair of the CMRSSCC, or a majority of planning group members, may call a special meeting. An agenda for a special meeting shall be specified as such, and shall be prepared and posted at least 24 hours before a special meeting. Each member of the planning group shall receive the written notice of the meeting at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting as specified in the notice unless the member files with the planning group secretary a written waiver of notice at, or prior to the time of, the meeting. Written notice shall be delivered to each local newspaper of general circulation and radio or television station requesting notice in writing at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting. The notice shall identify the business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting. No other business shall be considered at this meeting. Public testimony on agenda items must be allowed; however, the non-agenda public comment period may be waived.

(xi) EMERGENCY MEETINGS - Emergency meetings, requiring no public notice, are called for matters related to public health and safety. These matters are outside of the purview of the CMRSSCC and are prohibited under these by-laws.

(xii) RIGHT TO RECORD - Any person attending a meeting of the CMRSSCC must be allowed to record or photograph the proceedings in the absence of a reasonable finding by the planning group that the recording cannot continue without noise, illumination, or obstruction of view that constitutes, or would constitute, a persistent disruption of the meeting.

(xiii) DISORDERLY CONDUCT - In the event that any planning group meeting is willfully interrupted by a person or group of persons, so as to make the orderly conduct of the meeting infeasible, the planning group may first cause removal of the individual or individuals. If that is unsuccessful then the planning group may order the meeting room cleared and continue in session on scheduled agenda items without an audience, except that representatives of the media shall be allowed to remain. The planning group may also re-admit an individual or individuals who were not responsible for the disruption.

(b) Subcommittees

The CMRSSCC may establish standing and ad hoc subcommittees when their operation contributes to more effective discussions at regular planning group meetings.

(i) STANDING SUBCOMMITTEES - Pursuant to the purpose of the CMRSSCC as identified in Article II, Section 1, the planning group has established no standing subcommittees but will create, as needed, an ad hoc subcommittee to address a particular planning or operational matter, such as the Elections subcommittee.

(ii) AD HOC SUBCOMMITTEES - Ad hoc subcommittees may be established for a finite period of time to review more focused issue areas and shall be disbanded following their review.

(iii) SUBCOMMITTEE COMPOSITION - Subcommittees shall contain a majority of members who are members of the planning group.

Non-members, who are duly appointed by a planning group to serve on a subcommittee, may be indemnified by the City in accordance with Ordinance No. 0-19883 NS, and any future amendments thereto, provided they satisfy any and all requirements of the Administrative Guidelines.

(iv) RECOMMENDATIONS - Subcommittee recommendations must be brought forth to the full planning group for formal vote at a noticed public meeting. In no case may a committee or subcommittee recommendation be forwarded directly to the City as the formal recommendation of the planning group without a formal vote of the full planning group.

(c) Abstentions and Recusals

(i) RECUSALS - Any member of the CMRSSCC with a direct economic interest in any project that comes before the planning group or its subcommittees must disclose to the planning group that economic interest, and must recuse from voting and not

participate in any manner as a member of the planning group for that item on the agenda.

(ii) ABSTENTIONS – In limited circumstances, a planning group member may abstain from either voting on an action item or participating or voting on an action item. The member must state, for the record, the reason for abstention.

(d) Meeting Documents and Records

(i) AGENDA BY MAIL - Requests to mail copies of a regular agenda, and any accompanying material, shall be granted. Such materials shall be mailed when the agenda is posted, or upon distribution to a majority of the members of the community planning group, whichever occurs first. A request to receive agendas and materials may be made for each calendar year and such request is valid for that entire year, but must be renewed by January 1 of the following year. A cost-recovery fee may be charged for the cost of providing this service.

(ii) AGENDA AT MEETING - Any written documentation, prepared or provided by City staff, applicants, or planning group members that is distributed at the planning group meeting, shall be made available upon request for public inspection without delay. If such material is distributed at the planning group meeting, then it shall be made available upon request at the meeting. If such material is prepared by someone other than City staff, applicants, or planning group members, or is received from a member of the public during public testimony on an agenda item, then the material shall be made available for public inspection at the conclusion of the meeting. A cost-recovery fee may be charge for the cost of reproducing any the materials requested by an individual or individuals.

(iii) MINUTES - For each planning group meeting, a report of CMRSSCC member attendance and a copy of approved minutes shall be retained by the planning group, and shall be available for public inspection. A copy of the draft minutes should be made available for public inspection as soon as possible but no later than the group's next regularly scheduled meeting. The minutes of each planning group meeting shall include the votes taken on each action item and reflect the names for, against and abstaining when the vote is not unanimous. Recusals shall also be recorded. Minutes should record speakers and public testimony, and whether each project applicant (whose project was subject to planning group action) appeared before the planning group. If an applicant did not appear before the planning group then the meeting minutes must indicate the date when and type of notification (e.g. electronic, telephonic, facsimile) provided to the applicant requesting his or her appearance at the planning group meeting. A copy of the approved minutes shall be submitted to the City within 14 days after approval by the planning group.

Comment [BF1]: I have not been forwarding the minutes post-approval, but I can, so I am OK with this.

The CMRSSCC is not required to audio or videotape meetings but if recordings are made, they are subject to a public request to inspect without charge. A cost-recovery fee may be charged for copies of recordings.

(iv) RECORDS RETENTION - CMRSSCC records must be retained for public review. Community planning group records are meeting agendas and any other writings that are distributed to at least a majority of the group members in connection with a matter subject to consideration at an open meeting of the group. Community planning group records do not include writings that are required to be submitted to the city in accordance with Council Policy 600-24 to substantiate and document the planning group operations and compliance. The planning group also receives materials that do not qualify as records. The Administrative Guidelines discuss categories of material that are City records, community planning group records, and non-records.

- Section 3. It shall be the duty of the CMRSSCC and its members to periodically seek communitywide understanding of and participation in the planning and implementation process as specified in Article II, Section 1. The planning group shall give due consideration to all responsible community attitudes insofar as these are deemed to be in the best long range interest of the community at large.
- Section 4. It shall be the duty of the CMRSSCC to maintain a current, up-to-date roster of the names, terms, and category/qualifications of planning group members in its possession, and to forward the current roster, as well as any updates, to the City. The planning group must also submit to the City an annual report of accomplishments for the past 12 months and anticipated objectives for the coming year related to Article II, Section 1 above. Rosters and annual reports constitute disclosable records under the Brown Act.
- Section 5. The CMRSSCC may develop a policy for financial contributions from the citizens of the community for the purposes of furthering the efforts of the planning group to promote understanding and participation in the planning process. However, no membership dues shall be required and no fee may be charged as a condition of attendance at any planning group meeting. All contributions must be voluntarily made, and no official planning group correspondence may be withheld based on any individual's desire to not make a voluntary contribution.
- Section 6. Each elected CMRSSCC member is required to attend an orientation training session administered by the City as part of planning group and individual member indemnification pursuant to Ordinance No. 0-19883 NS, and any future amendments thereto. If it is not possible for a new member to attend the training session as required, or if a new member is seated through a special election or in a month other than March, then the member shall successfully complete the online orientation training.

As required by O-19883 NS, newly seated planning group members must complete a basic orientation training session within 60 days of being elected or appointed to a planning group or the member will be ineligible to serve.

ARTICLE VII Planning Group Officers

- Section 1. The officers of the CMRSSCC shall be elected from and by the members of the planning group. Said officers shall consist of a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and Secretary. The length of an officer's term shall be two years except that no person may serve in the same planning group office for more than eight or nine consecutive years. After a period of one year in which that person did not serve as an officer that person shall again be eligible to serve as an officer.
- Section 2. Chairperson. The Chairperson shall be the principal officer of a recognized community planning group and shall preside over all planning group and community wide meetings organized by the planning group. Additional duties-include: setting the agenda, and being the point of contact for development applicants.

Appeals of discretionary decisions to the City shall be made by the Chairperson or, if necessary because of direct economic interest or absence, by a designee identified to appeal that particular action on behalf of the planning group.

- Section 3. Vice-Chairperson. In the absence of the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson shall perform all the duties and responsibilities of the Chairperson.
- Section 4. Secretary. The Secretary shall be responsible for the planning group's correspondence, attendance records, and minutes and actions [including identification of those planning group members that constitute a quorum, who vote on an action item, and who may abstain or recuse and the reasons], and shall assure that planning group members and members of the public have access to this information. The Secretary may take on these responsibilities or may identify individuals to assist in these duties.
- Section 5. The Chairperson shall be a recognized community planning group's representative to the Community Planners Committee (CPC). However, by vote of the planning group, a planning group member other than the chair may be selected as the official representative to CPC with the same voting rights and privileges as the chair. Designation of a member other than the chair for either representative, as well as for the planning group's alternate to CPC shall be forwarded in writing to the staff representative to CPC prior to extension of voting rights and member attendance.
- Section 6. The CMRSSCC officers and representatives to the CPC shall promptly disseminate to all elected planning group members pertinent information that is received by the planning group regarding its official business.

ARTICLE VIII Planning Group Policies and Procedures

Section 1. The CMRSSCC bylaws incorporate policies and procedures directed by Article I through VII of Council Policy 600-24. These bylaws also contain some policies and procedures recommended in Article VIII of Council Policy 600-24.

Listed procedures are grouped by category as follows: Community Participation; Planning Group Composition; Conduct of Meetings; Member and Planning Group Responsibilities; and Elections.

(a) Community Participation

The following are the CMRSSCC procedures regarding community participation:

There is no deviation from the set agenda. The community participation will generally occur near the beginning of the meeting under the heading of Public Comment as listed on the agenda (Article VIII, Section Ic below); although testimony will be accepted from the public on all items that the CMRSSCC schedules as action items. Time limits for testimony will be set by the chair and may vary by complexity of an item and number of speakers.

(b) Planning Group Composition

The following are CMRSSCC procedures pursuant to Article III, Section 2 regarding planning group composition:

There is no deviation for Article III.

(c) Conduct of Meetings

The following are the CMRSSCC procedures regarding conduct of planning group meetings:

Monthly agendas are posted in the Carmel Mountain Ranch Library. The general outline will include the following:

- I. Call to order
- II. Vote to approve meeting agenda
- III. Introduction of Board Members
- IV. Approval of minutes
- V. CMRSSCC Business
 - a. Public Comment
 - b. Neighborhood Police Report
 - c. CMR Fire Station Report
 - d. Assemblyman Report
 - e. Supervisor Report

-14-

- f. Councilman Report
- g. San Diego Planning Dept Report
- h. State Senator Report
- i. Mayor Report
- j. Congressman Report
- k. Chair's Report
- 1. Old Business
- m. New Business
- n. Action Items
- VI. Adjournment

Meetings are posted in local newspapers.

(d) Member and Planning Group Responsibilities

The following are the CMRSSCC procedures regarding member and planning group responsibilities:

Members shall not have more than three unexcused absences from monthly meetings. NOTE: there is no such thing as an excused absence anymore – all absences fall under Article IV, Section I.

(e) Elections

The Administrative Guidelines provides general guidance for planning group elections. The following are procedures pertaining to the elections provisions of these by laws:

Conduct of Elections

1. Election Subcommittee: The Election Subcommittee shall consist of the Vice-Chairperson and three other Committee members who are elected by the Committee at the regularly scheduled October meeting. No member running for election shall serve as a member of the Election Subcommittee. If the Vice-Chairperson is running for re-election, the Committee shall elect someone to replace her/him as the Chair of the Election Subcommittee

2. Election Meeting: The election meeting shall take place in March at the location of the regularly scheduled Committee meeting or at a special election meeting in March at the Committee's discretion. At the election meeting, the Vice-Chairperson (or approved replacement if the Vice-Chairperson is running for re-election) shall conduct and manage the election with the assistance of the Election Subcommittee. Other Committee members may assist in the process so long as they are not candidates in the election.

3. Publication of Election: A notice of election and solicitation of candidates shall be posted in a community newspaper and/or multiple community forums no later than January preceding the March election.

4. Candidate Eligibility: An individual is qualified to run for a seat on the CMRSSCC if she/he is an eligible member of the community, as described in Article III, Section 2.

The CMRSSCC will not allow write-in candidates.

Determination of eligibility shall be the responsibility of the Election Subcommittee and a formal record of this eligibility shall be kept.

5. Electioneering: there shall be no electioneering (handing out election slate materials, soliciting votes by candidates, etc.) within 100 feet of the voting premises.

6. Voter Eligibility: An individual is eligible to vote in the CMRSSCC if she/he is a Recognized Community Member, as described in Article III, Section 2, and provides proof of such eligibility. Proof of eligibility shall consist of:

a. A valid CA driver's license or CA ID with an address located within the CMRSSCC area, or

b. A current utility bill (within the last 2 months) with the name and address within the CMRSSCC area (plus some acceptable form of picture identification), or

c. A property tax statement with the name and address within the CMRSSCC area (plus some acceptable form of picture identification), or

d. Such other identification deemed acceptable by an Election Subcommittee member.

All prospective voters shall sign the voter log, which requires name, address, and if applicable, business name. This log shall be kept by the Vice-Chairperson or in the event that the Vice-Chairperson is running for office, by the Chairperson of the CMRSSCC as a permanent record of the election proceedings.

7. Counting of Ballots: Counting shall be done by the Election Subcommittee members.

8. Election Results: Election results shall be determined by Plurality Vote, as when the candidates for available seats who receive the highest number of votes cast are elected irrespective of the percentage of votes received by any candidate. The election results shall be reported by the Chairperson of the CMRSSCC (or their designee if the Chairperson is running for re-election) so that the results may be announced at the Election Meeting.

9. The Vice-Chairperson in her/his capacity as Election Chairperson shall keep all election materials (ballots, voter log, etc.) for at least six (6) months. In the event the Vice-Chairperson is running for re-election, the Chairperson will keep all election materials. At the end of that period, the materials may be destroyed. In disputed elections, the City of San Diego's Neighborhood Planning Department, or other City agency, at the Election Subcommittee's discretion, may take responsibility for election materials.

10. Challenges to the eligibility of a candidate to run for the CMRSSCC should be brought to the attention of the Election Subcommittee. In order to facilitate these challenges, the Election Subcommittee will make the eligibility record (See item 4 in this subsection) available to any member of the public (at her/his own expense) who requests it.

11. Election Challenges: Challenges to the election shall be made to the Elections Subcommittee within 48 hours of the election. With the exception of ballots, copies of all election materials shall be made available to the public at the expense of the party making the request. NOTE: you may also want to refer to the Admin Guidelines – the forthcoming discussion on election challenge details the steps in a challenge process. See the Elections handout where the Admin Guidelines language is attached

ARTICLE IX Rights and Liabilities of Recognized Community Planning Groups

- Section 1. Indemnification and Representation. The CMRSSCC and its duly elected or appointed members have a right to representation by the City Attorney and a right to indemnification by the City under Ordinance 0-198836 NS, and any future amendments thereto, if the claim or action against them resulted from their obligation to advise and assist the City and its agencies with land use matters as specified in Council Policy 600-24, Article II, Section 1; their conduct was in conformance with the Policy and these bylaws; and all findings specified in the ordinance can be made.
- Section 2. Brown Act Remedies. The CMRSSCC and its duly elected members may be subject to both Council Policy 600-24 violations as described in Section 3 below and penalties provided for in the Brown Act. The Brown Act includes criminal penalties and civil remedies. Both individual members of the planning group, as well as the planning group itself, may be subject to civil remedies. Under certain circumstances, individual planning group members may face criminal misdemeanor charges for attending a meeting where action is taken in violation of the Brown Act, and where the member intended to deprive the public of information to which the member knows or has reason to know the public is entitled. Alleged violations will be reviewed and evaluated on a case-by-case basis.
- Section 3. Council Policy 600-24 Violations and Remedies.

(a) Alleged Violations by a Member of the CMRSSCC

Comment [BF2]: I think only a reference to Section 4 of the Administrative Guidelines is needed; the text states: "If a challenge is received, the Elections Subcommittee immediately discusses the challenge to determine if there is any substance provided by the individual filing the challenge and whether: either there is no substance to the challenge and the election results can be certified, new members can be seated in April and a ratification vote of the Subcommittee's findings can be placed on the April agenda for a majority vote of the voting members of the community planning group; OR whether there is substance to the challenge and the group officers should discuss with the Subcommittee the appropriate resolution, including declaring a seat vacant and determining how to fill it, or declaring a new election is needed." I would replace this text with 'Refer to Section 4 of the Administrative Guidelines."

In cases of alleged violations of the CMRSSCC bylaws or Council Policy 600-24 by a planning group member, the planning group may conduct an investigation consistent with the Administrative Guidelines and these bylaws.

A complaint that an individual member of a planning group violated one or more provisions of the planning group's bylaws or Council Policy 600-24 may be submitted to the planning group chair by any individual, including another planning group member. The complaint should be filed within 90 days of the alleged violation.

If, after a thorough investigation, the planning group determines that the individual member has violated a provision of these bylaws or Council Policy 600-24, the planning group shall, where feasible, seek a remedy that corrects the violation and allows the member to remain as a member of the planning group.

If corrective action or measures are not feasible, the planning group may remove a member by a two-thirds vote of the voting members of the recognized community planning group. The vote to remove the group member shall occur at a regularly scheduled public meeting subject to the procedures outlined in the Administrative Guidelines and these bylaws.

If the planning group member found to be out of compliance with the provisions of these bylaws or Council Policy 600-24, the planning group risks loss of indemnification [legal protection and representation] pursuant to Ordinance No. 0-19883 NS, and any future amendments thereto.

Investigation procedures for elected member violations are outlined below:

Any action by the CMRSSCC to discipline or remove a member must occur at a scheduled planning group meeting and be advertised on the agenda as an action item. Due to the significant nature of removing an elected member, and to ensure a fair and public process, the procedures for investigating a violation of a member are listed below:

Documenting a violation:

• A complaint that a violation of bylaws of Council Policy 600-24 has occurred will be presented to the planning group chair. If the complaint is about the chair, it may be presented to any other officer of the planning group.

• The complaint should be detailed enough to provide a description of, and timeframe within which, the alleged violation was committed and who was responsible for the violation.

• The complaint should provide a citation of the bylaws or Council Policy 600-24 provisions of which the action is claimed to violate. If the complaint is from someone other than another planning group member, the chair [or other officer] may assist in providing appropriate citations to assist the complainant.

• The chair will confer with the planning group officers [exception: if an officer is the subject of the grievance or has a business or personal relationship with the alleged violator] regarding the complaint.

• The-chair shall create a written record of the complaint and alleged violation to share with the alleged violator.

Procedures for administering and acting on investigating a violation: [While the authority for this process rests with this planning group, City staff may be contacted for assistance at any point in the process.]

• Once the information about an alleged violation is completed in writing, the chair, with assistance from the planning group officers, will meet and talk with the planning group member against whom the violation is alleged. The allegations will be presented and the planning group member shall be given opportunity for rebuttal.

• If the chair, with assistance from the planning group officers, determines that no violation has actually occurred, the chair may record this in the written record of the complaint.

• If the chair, with assistance from the planning group officers, determines that a violation has occurred but the situation can be remedied either by action of the planning group or by the planning group member, then the chair will outline the necessary actions to achieve the remedy.

• If the chair, with assistance from the planning group officers, determines that the situation cannot be remedied and that the interests of the community and CMRSSCC would best be served by the removal of the planning group member, then the chair shall set the matter for discussion at the next planning group meeting. The planning group member who committed the violation shall be given adequate notice about the meeting discussion, and will be given the opportunity to resign prior to docketing the matter for a planning group discussion.

Presenting a violation to the planning group:

• The matter of removing a seated planning group member will be placed on the planning group's agenda as a potential action item. Supporting materials from the chair or from the offending planning group member will be made available to the elected planning group members prior to the meeting. • The matter will be discussed at the planning group's regular meeting with opportunity given to the planning group member who committed the violation to present their case and/or rebut documentation gathered by the chair with the assistance of the planning group officers. The member may also request a continuance of the item to gather more information to present to the planning group.

• At the end of the discussion, the planning group may, by a 2/3 vote of the recognized community planning group, choose to remove the member.

Recourse for expelled member:

• There is no appeal available to an elected planning group member removed by a 2/3 vote of the voting members of their recognized community planning group.

• The planning group member's seat shall be immediately declared vacant and subject to provisions of Article IV.

• The removal of a planning group member by a 2/3 vote of the voting members of their recognized community planning group will not prohibit the member from running for a planning group seat in future scheduled elections.

(b) Alleged Violations against the CMRSSCC as a Whole

In the case of an alleged violation of the planning group's bylaws or of Council Policy 600-24 by the planning group as a whole or multiple members of the planning group, the violation shall be forwarded in writing to the City. The Mayor's Office will engage in a dialogue with the planning group, determining the validity of the complaint, and seeking resolution of the issue or dispute. The CMRSSCC will work with the City toward a solution and the planning group recognizes that, in accordance with Council Policy 600-24, the City may consult with the Community Planners Committee.

If a violation against the planning group as a whole is proven and there is a failure of the planning group to take corrective action, the planning group will forfeit its rights to represent its community as a community planning group recognized under Council Policy 600-24. Such a determination resulting in the forfeiture of a seated group's rights to represent its community shall be based on a recommendation by the Mayor's Office to the City Council. A planning group shall not forfeit its recognized status until there is an action by the City Council to remove the status. The City Council may also prescribe conditions under which official recognition will be reinstated.

If the planning group is found to be out of compliance with the provisions of this Policy not subject to the Brown Act or its adopted bylaws it risks loss of indemnification [legal

protection and representation] pursuant to Ordinance No. 0-19883 NS, and any future amendments thereto.

Exhibit A: CMRSSCC Boundary Map

